BYLAWS

With amendments as of June 4, 2021

Name: Real Pride Network

ARTICLE 1. OFFICES

<u>Principal Office</u>. Real Pride Network ("Corporation") may have offices, either within or without the State of Washington, as the Board of Directors ("Board") may designate or as the affairs of the Corporation may require from time to time.

ARTICLE 2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 2.1 <u>General Powers</u>. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board. Directors need not be residents of the State of Washington.
- 2.2 <u>Number and Tenure</u>. The Board shall be composed of no fewer than five (5) Directors. The number of Directors may be changed from time to time by amendment to these Bylaws but no decrease in the number of Directors shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent Director. A Director shall hold office until the Director is replaced by election of all members under Section 2.21 of this Article, or until he or she dies, resigns or is removed by a majority vote of the Directors under Section 2.10 of this Article.
- 2.3 <u>Regular Meetings</u>. By resolution, the Board may specify the time and place either within or without the State of Washington for holding regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.
- 2.4 <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special Board meetings may be called by or at the request of any two (2) Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings may fix any place either within or without the State of Washington as the place for holding any special Board meeting called by them.
- 2.5 Notice of Special Meetings. Written notice stating the place, day, and hour of each special Board meeting shall be delivered personally or by mail or electronic mail to each Director at his/her address shown on the records of the Corporation or email address at least two (2) days before the meeting. Notice shall be effective upon delivery at such address, provided notice by mail shall also be deemed effective if deposited in the United States mail properly addressed with postage prepaid at least five (5) days before the meeting; notice by electronic mail shall be deemed effective when transmitted. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any special meeting, need be specified in the notice of such meetings.

2.6 Waiver of Notice.

- 2.6.1 Whenever any notice is required to be given to any Director under the provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Washington Nonprofit Corporation Act, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting.
- 2.6.2 The attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- 2.7 <u>Quorum</u>. A majority of the total number of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any Board meeting but, if less than a majority is present at a meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.
- 2.8 <u>Manner of Acting</u>. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.
- <u>2.8.1 Cast deciding vote</u>. In the case of an equality of votes on any question at a meeting of the Board, the Chairperson of the meeting have a second or casting vote.
- 2.9 <u>Resignation</u>. Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary, or to the registered office of the Corporation.
- 2.10 <u>Removal</u>. A Director may be removed from office upon the vote of a majority of the remaining Directors. A Director who has been removed under this section shall be ineligible to act as a Director for five years following the date of their removal from office.

2.10 amended by unanimous Board resolution May 11, 2021

- 2.11 <u>Vacancies</u>. Any vacancy occurring on the Board may be filled by the vote of a majority of the remaining Directors. Unless he/she dies, resigns, or is removed, a Director so elected shall hold office until his/her successor is elected.
- 2.12 <u>Presumption of Assent</u>. A Director of the Corporation present at a Board meeting at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the

action taken unless his/her dissent is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless he/she files his/her written dissent to such action with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof, or unless he/she forwards such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. A Director who voted in favor of such action may not dissent.

- 2.13 <u>Compensation</u>. Directors shall not receive compensation for their services rendered to the Corporation but, by Board resolution, Directors may be paid their expenses, if any. No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation.
- 2.14 <u>Activities</u>. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.
- 2.15 Loans. No loans shall be made by the Corporation to any of its Directors.
- 2.16 <u>Meeting by teleconference</u>. Members of the Board may participate in a meeting by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment provided all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other and such participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.
- 2.17 Action by Board without a Meeting. Any action which could be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if a written consent, including by email, setting forth the action so taken is given by each of the Directors. Any such written consent shall be inserted in the minute book as if it were the minutes of a Board meeting.
- 2.18 <u>Standing committees</u>. Standing committees, each of which shall consist of no fewer than one Director, are the Finance Committee and the Governance Committee.
- 2.19 Ad hoc committees. The Board, by resolution, adopted by a majority of the Board, may designate and appoint one (1) or more committees to advise the Board. If the committee shall have and exercise the authority of the Board in the management of the Corporation, it shall consist of no fewer than two (2) Directors.

- 2.20. Conflict of interest. A Director who has a direct or indirect interest in:
- a) a contract or transaction with the Corporation, or
- b) a matter that is or is to be the subject of consideration by the Board, if that interest could result in the creation of a duty or interest that materially conflicts with that Director's duty or interest as a Direct,

must:

- c) disclose fully and promptly to the Board the nature and extent of the interest,
- d) abstain from voting on the contract, transaction or matter, and
- e) leave the Board meeting
 - i) while the contract, transaction or matter is discussed, unless asked by council to be present to provide information, and
 - ii) while the council votes on the contract, transaction or matter.
- 2.21 Transitional Election Bylaw. On or before May 27, 2021, the Corporation shall call an election of two (2) new Directors to be elected by all members in good standing with the Corporation. Candidates for Director positions must also be in good standing with the Corporation. Each member in good standing shall be entitled to vote in the election. The election may be by electronic means and members shall be given at least 14 days notice of the election. The Board of Directors may adopt further Bylaws, Policies and Procedures to govern the election, which shall be in accordance with Chapter 24.03 of the Revised Code of Washington. The Corporation shall enact a further bylaw to govern the 2022 election, which shall address the twin goals of continuity of leadership in the growth phase of Real Pride Network and transition to a fully elected Board of Directors.

2.21 Amended by unanimous Board resolution May 11, 2021

ARTICLE 3. OFFICERS

- 3.1 <u>Number</u>. The officers of a corporation shall consist of a president, one or more vice presidents, a secretary, and a treasurer, and such assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board; such officers and assistant officers to hold office for such period have such authority and perform such duties as may be provided by resolutions of the Board and these bylaws. The Board may delegate to any officer or agent the power to appoint any such subordinate officers, or agents, and to prescribe their respective terms of office, authority, and duties. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.
- 3.2 <u>Election and Term of Office</u>. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board. Unless he/she dies, resigns, or is removed, each officer shall hold office until his/her successor is elected.

- 3.3 <u>Resignation</u>. Any officer may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary or the Board.
- 3.4 <u>Removal</u>. Any office or agent elected or appointed by the Board may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed.
- 3.5 <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any Office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term.
- 3.6 <u>President</u>. The President shall be chief executive officer of the Corporation and, subject to the Board's approval, shall supervise and control all of the assets, business, and affairs of the Corporation. The President shall preside over all Board. The President may sign deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments, except when the signing and execution thereof have been expressly delegated by the Board or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation or are required by law to be otherwise signed or executed by some other officer in some other manner. The President may appoint or remove any staff or consultants for the Corporation and establish the rate of compensation for any such staff person or consultant. In general, he/she shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties prescribed by the Board from time to time.
- 3.7 <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of meetings of the Board in one (1) or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; (c) be custodian of the corporate records; (d) keep registers of the post office address of each Director; (e) sign with the President, or other officer authorized by the President or the Board, deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments, except when the signing and execution thereof have been expressly delegated by the Board or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation; (f) prepare and submit an annual report as required by the State of Washington Nonprofit Corporation Act, and (g) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board. In the absence of the Secretary, an Assistant Secretary may perform his/her duties.
- 3.8 <u>Treasurer</u>. If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give bond for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board shall determine. They shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation; receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Corporation in banks, trust companies or other depositories selected in accordance with the revisions of these Bylaws; and in general perform all of the duties incident to the office of

Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to them by the Board. In the absence of the Treasurer, an Assistant Treasurer may perform their duties.

3.9 <u>Salary</u>. The officers shall not receive any salary for their services. Officers may be reimbursed for their expenses. No loans shall be made by the Corporation to its officers.

ARTICLE 4. MEMBERS

The members of this Corporation shall consist of the Directors and any person who has purchased an annual membership and remains in good standing with the Corporation in accordance with these Bylaws and the Corporation's Policies and Procedures.

ARTICLE 5. CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

- 5.1 <u>Contracts</u>. The Board may authorize any officer or officers, or agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of, and on behalf of, the Corporation. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- 5.2 <u>Loans</u>. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- 5.3 <u>Checks, Drafts, Etc.</u> All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, or agent or agents, of the Corporation and in such manner as is from time to time determined by resolution of the Board.
- 5.4 <u>Deposits</u>. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board may select.
- 5.5 <u>Gifts and Contributions</u>. The Treasurer may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or device as may be consistent with the established purposes of the Corporation and as may be permitted by any applicable local, state, or federal law.

ARTICLE 6. BOOKS AND RECORDS

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account, minutes of the proceedings of its Board, and such other records as may be necessary or advisable or required by law at the registered or principal office of the Corporation. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by a Director for any proper purpose at any reasonable time, upon reasonable notice to the Secretary of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 7. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the calendar year, provided that if a different fiscal year is at any time selected for purposes of federal income taxes, the fiscal year shall be the year so selected.

ARTICLE 8. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- 8.1 <u>Number, Tenure and Qualifications</u>. The Board, by majority vote, may elect from its members an Executive Committee, which will assist in preparing and implementing Corporation policies and programs. The number of members of the Executive Committee shall not be less than three (3), including the Chair of the Board of Directors, if any. The members shall serve for one year or until they are re-elected or their successors are elected.
- 8.2 <u>Powers</u>. The Executive Committee shall have the authority to direct and oversee the implementation by the Executive Director of policies, initiatives, and programs recommended by the Board. The Executive Committee shall also have the authority to approve and oversee the budget and approve contracts on behalf of the Corporation.
- 8.3 <u>Chair of the Executive Committee</u>. The President shall serve as Chair of the Executive Committee.
- 8.4 <u>Meetings</u>. The Executive Committee shall meet, from time to time, when any such meeting is called by the Chair, or by a majority of the members of the Executive Committee. Notice for such a meeting shall be delivered orally or in writing twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting.
- 8.5 <u>Quorum</u>. A majority of the members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Executive Committee.
- 8.6 <u>Manner of Acting</u>. The act of a majority of the members present at a meeting of the Executive Committee which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Executive Committee.
- 8.7 <u>Action by the Executive Committee without Meeting</u>. Any action which would otherwise be taken at a meeting of the Executive Committee may be taken without a meeting if such action is approved, in writing, by all the members of the Executive Committee.
- 8.8 <u>Meeting by teleconference</u>. Members of the Executive Committee may participate in a meeting by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment provided all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other.

ARTICLE 9. INDEMNIFICATION

To the full extent permitted by the law of the State of Washington, the Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party to any civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he/she is or was a Director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director or officer of another corporation, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and necessarily incurred by him/her in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding; and the Board may, at any time, approve indemnification of any other person which the Corporation has the power to indemnify under the laws of the State of Washington. The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a person may be entitled as a matter of law or by contract. The foregoing shall not apply to matters as to which any such person shall be adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of a duty. The Corporation may purchase and maintain indemnification insurance for any person to the extent permitted by applicable law.

ARTICLE 10. NONDISCRIMINATION

Real Pride Network does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, mental or physical disability, national or ethnic origin (ancestry), disability, marital or family status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its activities or operations. These activities include hiring and firing of staff, selection of volunteers and vendors, and provision of services. We are committed to providing an inclusive and welcoming environment for all members of our staff, clients, volunteers, subcontractors, vendors, and clients.

ARTICLE 11. AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board.

ARTICLE 12. DISSOLUTION

Upon the dissolution of the corporation, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by a Court of Competent Jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

The foregoing Bylaws were adopted by the		on the	_day of
, 2020.			
	Secretary		